
 
 

 

 
To: ; an Councillor Milne, Convener and Councillors Dickson and Donnelly. 

 

 
 Town House, 

ABERDEEN 19 April 2016 
 

LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 The Members of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL are 
requested to meet in Committee Room 4 - Town House on TUESDAY, 26 APRIL 2016 at 
11.30 am. 
 

  

 
FRASER BELL 

HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

1 Procedure Notice  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 COPIES OF THE RELEVANT PLANS / DRAWINGS ARE AVAILABLE FOR 
INSPECTION IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING AND WILL BE DISPLAYED AT 

THE MEETING 

 

 TO REVIEW THE DECISION OF THE APPOINTED OFFICER TO REFUSE THE 
FOLLOWING APPLICATIONS 

 

 PLANNING ADVISER - ANDREW MILLER 

 

2 7 King's Gate Aberdeen  - erection of tree house to rear of existing dwelling 
(retrospective) - 151391   
 

3 Delegated Report, Plans, Decision Notice and and Letters of Objection  (Pages 7 - 
20) 

 Members, please access all relevant plans at the following link:- 
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=151391  
 

4 Planning policies referred to in documents submitted - all policies available at the 
following link   

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 Scottish Planning Policy 
Scottish Historic Environment Policy 
Policy D1 – Architecture and Placemaking  
Policy D5 – Built Heritage 
Policy H1 – Residential Areas 
Supplementary Guidance – Householder Development Guide 
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan  
 
D1 – Quality Placemaking by Design 
D4 – Historic Environment  
H1 – Residential Areas  
 
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_development
_plan/pla_local_development_plan.asp  
 

5 Notice of Review with supporting information submitted by applicant / agent  
(Pages 21 - 26) 
 

6 Determination - Reasons for decision   

 Members, please note that reasons should be based against Development Plan 
policies and any other material considerations. 
 

7 Consideration of conditions to be attached to the application - if Members are 
minded to over-turn the decision of the case officer   
 

 PLANNING ADVISER - ROBERT FORBES 

 

8 Brookfield, Land at Murtle Den Road, Milltimber  - Demolition of existing 
dwellinghouse and erection of 3 dwellinghouses - 151376   
 

9 Delegated Report, Plans, Decision Notice and and Letters of Objection  (Pages 27 
- 68) 

 Members, please access all relevant plans at the following link:- 
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=151376  
 

10 Planning policies referred to in documents submitted - all policies available at the 
following link   



 
 
 

 Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
Policy NE1 – Green Space Network 
Policy NE2 – Green Belt 
Policy D1 – Architecture and Placemaking 
Policy D2 – Design and Amenity 
Policy NE5 – Trees and Woodland 
Policy NE6 – Flooding and Drainage 
Policy NE8 – Natural Heritage 
 
Proposed Local Development Plan 
D1 – Quality Placemaking by Design 
D2 - Landscape 
I1 – Infrastructure Delivery and Planning Obligations 
T2 – Managing the Transport Impact of Development 
T3 – Sustainable and Active Travel 
NE1 – Green Space Network 
NE2 – Green Belt 
NE5 – Trees and Woodland 
NE6 – Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality 
NE8 – Natural Heritage 
R7 – Low and Zero Carbon Buildings and Water Efficiency 
 
Supplementary Guidance 
Subdivision and Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages  
 
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning_environment/planning/local_development
_plan/pla_local_development_plan.asp  
 

11 Notice of Review with supporting information submitted by applicant / agent  
(Pages 69 - 78) 
 

12 Determination - Reasons for decision   
 

13 Consideration of conditions to be attached to the application - if Members are 
minded to over-turn the decision of the case officer   
 

 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Lynsey 
McBain on lymcbain@aberdeencity.gov.uk / tel 01224 522123   
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 1

Page 5



Page 6



Signed (authorised Officer(s)): 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

7 KING'S GATE, ABERDEEN 
 
ERECTION OF TREE HOUSE TO REAR OF 
EXISTING DWELLING (RETROSPECTIVE).    
 
For: Mr Drummond Lawson 
 
Application Type : Detailed Planning 
Permission 
Application Ref. :  P151391 
Application Date : 09/09/2015 
Advert   : Section 60/65 - Dev aff 
LB/CA 
Advertised on : 16/09/2015 
Officer   : Ross McMahon 
Creation Date : 3 December 2015 
Ward: Hazlehead/Ashley/Queens Cross(M 
Greig/J Stewart/R Thomson/J Corall) 
Community Council: No response received 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Refuse 
 
 
DESCRIPTION 
The application site, located on the south side of King’s Gate, extends to 
511sq.m and is occupied by a Category ‘B’ listed traditional two-and-a-half storey 
semi-detached dwelling house, of slate and granite construction, set within an 
established residential area. The rear garden is located to the south of the 
property and sits adjacent to a side lane linking King’s Gate with Hamilton Place, 
to the south. The site slopes down gently from King’s Gate to the rear (south) of 
the site and is demarcated by a c. 1.5m high stone wall to all rear boundaries of 
the site, in addition to trees and small hedges. The site is located within the Albyn 
Place/Rubislaw Conservation Area and lies within a Residential Area, as 
identified in the adopted Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
None. 
 
PROPOSAL 
Retrospective planning permission is sought for the erection of an elevated 
wooden structure, referred to as a ‘tree house’, and an associated area of 
decking to the south-east of the site. The overall height of the erected structure 

Agenda Item 3

Page 7



measures approx. 4.8m from ground level, and approx. 2.5m to the timber deck, 
forming a large timber lined screen which sits on the existing granite boundary 
wall and measures 4.5m in overall height, with an overall width of 6.7m along the 
east boundary facing onto the side lane. 
 
The structure is constructed primarily in timber, with stained timber 
linings/cladding used to form screening to the side lane. 
 
Supporting Documents 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at -    
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref.=151391 
On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
Roads Development Management – No observations. 
Environmental Health – No observations. 
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure (Flooding) – No observations. 
Community Council – No comments received. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
Two letters of representation have been received in connection with the 
application. The points raised relate to the following matters – 
 

1. The east wall should be stained/treated in its entirety; 
2. The proposal is out of character with the area and adversely affects the 

privacy of adjacent properties; 
3. The application would set a precedent for similar types of development. 

 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
National Policy and Guidance 

 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) 
Paragraph 141 – Listed Buildings: The layout, design, materials, scale, siting and 
use of any development which will affect a listed building or its setting should be 
appropriate to the character and appearance of the building and setting. 
 
Paragraph 143 – Conservation Areas: Proposals for development within 
conservation areas and proposals out with which will impact on its appearance, 
character or setting, should preserve or enhance the character and appearance 
of the conservation area. Proposals that do not harm the character or 
appearance of the conservation area should be treated as preserving its 
character or appearance. 
 

Page 8



Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP) 
Development should not adversely affect the special interest and character of 
Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas. 
 

• Historic Environment Scotland’s ‘Managing Change in the Historic 
Environment – Setting’ 
The setting of a historic asset can incorporate a range of factors, not all of 
which will apply to every case: current landscape or townscape context; 
visual envelope, incorporating views to, from and across the historic asset 
or place; key vistas, framed by rows of trees, buildings or natural features 
that give an asset or place a context, whether intentional or not; the 
prominence of the historic asset or place in views throughout the 
surrounding area; character of the surrounding landscape; general and 
specific views including foregrounds and backdrops; relationships between 
both built and natural features; aesthetic qualities; other non-visual factors 
such as historical, artistic, literary, linguistic, or scenic associations, 
intellectual relationships (e.g. to a theory, plan or design), or sensory 
factors; a ‘Sense of Place’, the overall effect formed by the above factors. 
 

 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 

 
Policy D1 – Architecture and Placemaking  
To ensure high standards of design, new development must be designed with 
due consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its setting. 
Factors such as siting, scale, massing, colour, materials, orientation, details, the 
proportions of building elements, together with the spaces around buildings, 
including streets, squares, open space, landscaping and boundary treatments, 
will be considered in assessing that contribution.  
 
Policy D5 – Built Heritage 
Proposals affecting Conservation Areas or Listed Buildings will only be permitted 
if they comply with Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
Policy H1 – Residential Areas 
Within existing residential areas (H1 on the Proposals Map) and within new 
residential developments, proposals for new residential development and 
householder development will be approved in principle if it: 

1. does not constitute overdevelopment; 
2. does not have an unacceptable impact on the character or amenity of the 

surrounding area; and 
3. complies with Supplementary Guidance contained in the Householder 

Development Guide. 
 
Supplementary Guidance 
Householder Development Guide   

Page 9



 
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 

 
The following policies substantively reiterate policies in the adopted local 
development plan as summarised above: 
 
D1 – Quality Placemaking by Design (D1 – Architecture and Placemaking in 
adopted LDP); 
 
D4 – Historic Environment (D5 – Built Heritage in adopted LDP); 
 
H1 – Residential Areas (H1 – Residential Areas in adopted LDP); 
 
EVALUATION 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) 
Act 1997 places a duty on planning authorities to preserve and enhance the 
character or appearance of conservation areas. 
 

The proposal would result in a nominal increase in site coverage which is 
considered to be acceptable within the context of the surrounding area. It is 
therefore not considered that the erected structure constitutes overdevelopment 
of the site. 
 
However, notwithstanding the above, the development is considered to be 
contrary to Policy D1 (Architecture & Placemaking), the Council’s Supplementary 
Guidance: Householder Development Guide, and therefore H1 (Residential 
Areas), D5 (Built Heritage) and therefore SHEP, Historic Environment Scotland’s 
‘Managing Change in the Historic Environment – Setting’ and SPP for the 
following reasons: 
 

1. The visual impact of the erected structure is considered to have a negative 
impact on the character of the surrounding area, the Albyn Place/Rubislaw 
Conservation Area and the setting of the Category ‘B’ listed dwelling by 
virtue of its overall height, size, scale and prominence to the side lane, and 
constitutes a particularly overbearing and alien feature within the 
streetscape and wider area generally, to the detriment of the character 
and appearance of the wider Albyn Place/Rubislaw Conservation Area. 
 

Page 10



2. The overall platform height of the erected tree house offers views into the 
private rear garden ground and habitable room windows of properties to 
the west of the development site, contrary to the Council’s Supplementary 
Guidance: Householder Development Guide, and therefore policy H1 
(Residential Areas) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. 
 

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
The Proposed ALDP was approved for submission for Examination by Scottish 
Ministers at the meeting of the Communities, Housing and Infrastructure 
Committee of 27 October 2015. It constitutes the Council’s settled view as to 
what should be the content of the final adopted ALDP and is now a material 
consideration in the determination of planning applications, along with the 
adopted ALDP. The exact weight to be given to matters contained in the 
Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to specific applications 
will depend on whether:  

- these matters have been subject to  representation and are regarded as 
unresolved issues to be determined at the Examination; and 

- the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.  
 
Policies and proposals which have not been subject to objection will not be 
considered at Examination. In such instances, they are likely to be carried 
forward for adoption. Such cases can be regarded as having greater material 
weight than those issues subject to Examination. The foregoing can only be 
assessed on a case by case basis. In relation to this particular application, 
proposed policies D1 (Quality Placemaking by Design), D4 (Historic 
Environment) and H1 (Residential Areas) substantively reiterate policies, D1 
(Architecture and Placemaking), D5 (Built Heritage) and H1 (Residential Areas) 
of the adopted Aberdeen Local Development Plan and therefore raise no 
additional material considerations. 
 
Matters Raised in Representations 
All matters raised in representations in respect of loss of amenity, appearance, 
impact on the character of the surrounding area, have been addressed in the 
evaluation section of this report. Full regard has been given to all concerns raised 
in representations, but neither do they outweigh the policy position as detailed 
above, nor do they justify refusal of the application. 
 
Conclusion 
To summarise, while the overall footprint of the erected tree house is considered 
to be acceptable, the development fails to comply with the relevant policies found 
within the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 in respect of design, size, 
scale in its location, its impact on the Albyn Place/Rubislaw Conservation Area 
and the setting of the category ‘B’ listed building, and additionally, borrows 
amenity from surrounding properties. 
 

Page 11



For the above reasons, the fails to comply with the relevant local policies 
contained within the adopted Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 and 
subsequently SHEP and SPP. On the basis of the above, and following on from 
the evaluation under policy and guidance, it is considered that there are no 
material planning considerations – including the Proposed Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan –  that would warrant approval of the application. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Refuse 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The proposal would have a negative impact on the residential amenity of the 
locality and the Albyn Place/Rubislaw Conservation Area. The proposal fails to 
comply with the relevant policies of Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012, 
namely Policies D1 (Architecture and Placemaking), D5 (Built Heritage), the 
Council’s Supplementary Guidance: Householder Development Guide and 
therefore H1 (Residential Areas) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 
by virtue of its overall size, scale and prominence to the street and its impact on 
the setting of the Category ‘B’ listed building, as it does not preserve the 
character and amenity of the Albyn Place/Rubislaw Conservation Area in line 
with the principles of Historic Scotland's SHEP and the associated Managing 
Change in the Historic Environment - Setting. On the basis of the above, and 
following on from the evaluation under policy and guidance, it is considered that 
there are no material planning considerations – including the Proposed Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan – that would warrant approval of the application. 
 

Page 12



 
 

 

     

APPLICATION REF NO P151391 

 
 

 

 
PLANNING & SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure  

Business Hub 4, Marischal College, Broad Street, 
ABERDEEN. AB10 1AB 

 

 

PETE LEONARD 
DIRECTOR  

 
 

 

 
  

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 
 

Refusal of Planning Permission 
 
Mr Drummond Lawson 
 

7 Kings Gate 

Aberdeen 

 

 
 
on behalf of Mr Drummond Lawson  
 
With reference to your application validly received on 9 September 2015 for Planning 
Permission under the above mentioned Act for the following development, viz:-  
 
ERECTION OF TREE HOUSE TO REAR OF EXISTING DWELLING 
(RETROSPECTIVE).     
at 7 King's Gate, Aberdeen  
 
the Council in exercise of their powers under the above mentioned Act hereby 
REFUSE Planning Permission for the said development as specified in the 
application form and the plan(s) and documents docketed as relative thereto and 
numbered as follows:- 
 
01, 02, 03, 04, 05. 
 
The reasons on which the Council has based this decision are as follows:- 
 
The proposal would have a negative impact on the residential amenity of the locality 
and the Albyn Place/Rubislaw Conservation Area. The Development Plan 2012, 
namely Policies D1 (Architecture and Placemaking), D5 (Built Heritage), the 
Council's Supplementary Guidance: Householder Development Guide and therefore 
H1 (Residential Areas) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 by virtue of its 
overall size, scale and prominence to the street and its impact on the setting of the 
Category 'B' listed building, as it does not preserve the character and amenity of the 
Albyn Place/Rubislaw Conservation Area in line with the principles of Historic 
Scotland's SHEP and the associated Managing Change in the Historic Environment - 
Setting. On the basis of the above, and following on from the evaluation under policy 
and guidance, it is considered that there are no material planning considerations - 

Page 13



 
     APPLICATION REF NO P151391  

 

Continuation 

 

 

PETE LEONARD 
DIRECTOR  

 

including the Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan - that would warrant 
approval of the application. 
 
The plans, drawings and documents that are the subject of this decision notice are 
numbered as follows:-  01, 02, 03, 04, 05. 
 
Date of Signing 4 December 2015  
 
 

 
 
 
 

Daniel Lewis 
Development Management Manager 

 
Enc. 

Page 14



 
     APPLICATION REF NO P151391  

 

Continuation 

 

 

PETE LEONARD 
DIRECTOR  

 

NB. EXTREMELY IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATED TO THIS REFUSAL OF 
PLANNING APPROVAL 

The applicant has the right to have the decision to refuse the application reviewed by the planning 

authority and further details are given in Form  attached below. 
 

  Regulation 28(4)(a) 
 

Form 1 
 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 
 

Notification to be sent to applicant on refusal of planning permission or on the 
grant of permission subject to conditions 
 

 
1. If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority to –  
 

a. refuse planning permission for the proposed development; 
 
b. to refuse approval, consent or agreement required by condition 

imposed on a grant of planning permission; 
 

c. to grant planning permission or approval, consent or agreement 
subject to conditions, 

 
the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under 
section 43A(8) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within 
three months from the date of this notice. Any requests for a review must be 
made on a ‘Notice of Review’ form available from the planning authority or at 
http://eplanning.scotland.gov.uk/. 
 
Notices of review submitted by post should be sent to – 
 
Planning and Sustainable Development 
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure  
Aberdeen City Council 
Business Hub 4 
Ground Floor North 
Marischal College 
Broad Street 
Aberdeen 
AB10 1AB  

2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and 
the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of 
reasonably beneficial use in it’s existing state and cannot be rendered 
capable of reasonably benefical use by the carrying out of any development 
which has been or would be permitted, the owners of the land may serve on 
the planning authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of the owner 
of the land’s interest in the land in accordance with Part 5 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997. 

 

Page 15



 
     APPLICATION REF NO P151391  

 

Continuation 

 

 

PETE LEONARD 
DIRECTOR  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

 

 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



7 Kings Gate 

Aberdeen 

AB15 4EL 

Grounds of Appeal Statement In relation to: 

Planning Appeal Number: 100004810-001 (Original Planning Application P151391-7) 

For the Erection of Tree House to Rear of Existing Dwelling (retrospective) 

 

This appeal relates to a retrospective planning application for a children’s tree house play 

structure which we erected in the garden of our property during the summer of 2014.  We did not 

intentionally avoid applying for planning permission, as we are aware that the property is a listed 

building and we have previously applied for planning permission, building warrant, listed building 

consent and tree work approval in relation to the property.  We had mistakenly assumed that 

being (a) a children’s play structure and (b) similar in structure and materials of construction to a 

garden shed, that it would not require permission.  As soon as we were made aware of this error, 

we contacted the council, sought advice and applied for retrospective permission. 

The reason for the appeal is as a result of three issues: 

(a) Because the structure is intended as a children’s play-thing, it does not need to remain 

indefinitely, and therefore would be appropriate to be considered for temporary planning 

permission.  When we originally contacted the council for advice on the correct remedial 

action to take once we had been made aware of our error of not applying for planning 

permission prior construction it, the indications were that our error was minor, permission 

should not be difficult to get, and we were advised to apply for full permission, with the 

potential to reduce the application to temporary permission if full permission was not 

granted.  We have subsequently been advised, however, that temporary permission 

would not be considered in this case.  This neither makes sense, nor is it aligned with the 

advice we were originally given. 

(b) Over the course of the planning application process we were contacted by Aberdeen City 

Council’s Planning Office to advise that they intended to recommend rejection of our 

application and to give us two options.  One was to go ahead with our application with a 

significant risk of rejection, and one was to withdraw our application with a view to 

modifying our application and resubmitting it at a later date.  Twice we requested a 

meeting with the Council Planning Department, to understand what options for 

modification we may have to bring the structure in line with acceptable planning 

guidelines, but we were refused a meeting outright.  Our application was subsequently 

rejected without us ever having made a decision as to which option we intended to 

accept, as a result of which the option was arbitrarily removed, which we consider 

unreasonable.  We continue to have no feedback on what modifications to the structure 

would bring it within planning guidelines due to the requests for meetings being rejected.  

As a result, we have had no opportunity to try to make adjustments to the structure to 

bring it in line with expectations.  We have considered painting the structure grey to blend 

it in with the surrounding granite walls and buildings, and we have considered fitting a 

slate roof to blend it in with the neighbouring garage, but given the risk of having to 

remove the structure, and the lack of dialogue with the council, we have not pursued 

either of these options for the time being.  We have raised a complaint with the planning 

department on this both these issues independently of this appeal and await receipt of 

Page 25



their findings into the complaint.  A copy of the complaint has been included with this 

appeal for information. 

(c) The tree house was constructed for as a play-structure for our children, with the 

involvement of the children in the construction process.  Having lived in a number of city 

centre properties, we are very aware of the sensitivities of overlooking other properties, 

and therefore constructed the treehouse so as to minimise this.  The east side of the 

treehouse has the potential to overlook the rear gardens of the properties in Fountainhall 

Road, so we avoided putting any windows in that elevation, and also constructed a solid 

wall to prevent children being able to overlook the gardens in any way.  To the south 

there was the potential to overlook the rear of the properties on Hamilton Place, so there 

were no windows put into that elevation.  The windows that we did put in are intentionally 

small and mainly face our own house.  The location of the tree house means that the 

majority of the view is into our own house, and what little overview of the neighbours 

properties there is, is less than the view we have from within our existing house.  The 

design and positioning of the houses beside and behind 7 Kings Gate means that all the 

houses have a clear view into each other’s rear windows, over their gardens, and in fact, 

due to the unusual feature of two angled windows in the rear of the property, directly into 

our neighbour’s house next door.  The limited views the tree house has over 

neighbouring properties are significantly less than are available from our house, if we 

were inclined to look into other properties.  Of course, with it being intended for children’s 

use, children are even less interested in looking into neighbouring properties than adults 

tend to be, and so invasion of privacy should not be an issue at all.  We invited the 

planning department to visit the site and consider the sightlines and view from the 

treehouse themselves, however, as noted above, any suggestion of meetings whether 

onsite or at the council offices were rejected. 

We have had many positive comments regarding the treehouse from neighbours, and not a 

single complaint, concern or negative comment.  We have had sight of the two comments 

submitted from concerned neighbours as part of the planning process, and it is interesting to note 

that one actually had no issue with the treehouse – only a request that it is painted to blend in 

better – which we had hoped to do anyway.  The other was a general comment relating to a 

perceived risk that approval of this treehouse could set a precedent – although a precedent for 

what was not entirely clear, however, considering the nature and purpose of this structure, it 

seems unlikely that it could be used as a precedent for inappropriate developments of a 

residential nature, which would presumably be of primary concern. 

We are happy to engage in dialogue with the council planning department and are happy to work 

to identify a middle ground, either adapting the structure to meet the planning requirements or 

amending the planning application to become a temporary planning application (or a combination 

of the two), however, without dialogue we cannot do either.  We also believe that a site visit to 

review the structure, the sightlines from the structure, and the comparable sightlines from our 

house, as well as the very comparable nature of the materials used in the construction to the 

materials of many neighbouring sheds, garages and outhouses, would allow the planning 

department to take a more thorough and considered view of the structure in question. 

 

Drummond Lawson 1st March 2016 

Page 26



Signed (authorised Officer(s)): 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

BROOKFIELD, LAND AT, MURTLE DEN 
ROAD, MILLTIMBER 
 
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING 
DWELLINGHOUSE AND ERECTION OF 3 
NO.DWELLINGHOUSES    
 
For: Mr Richard McDonald 
 
Application Type : Planning Permission in 
Principle 
Application Ref. : P151376 
Application Date : 31/08/2015 
Advert   : Dev. Plan Departure 
Advertised on : 09/09/2015 
Officer   : Paul Williamson 
Creation Date : 7 January 2016 
Ward: Lower Deeside (M Boulton/A 
Malone/M Malik) 
Community Council: No response received 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Refuse 
 
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
The application site of 1.01 hectares forms the domestic curtilage of the 
residential property known as ‘Brookfield’.  It is located on the east side of Murtle 
Den Road, a private road, situated to the north of North Deeside Road (A93) 
between Milltimber and Bieldside. 
 
Murtle Den Road is characterised by (thirteen) large detached dwellinghouses 
set within generous plots in a mature woodland setting. It is a no-through road 
and can only be accessed from North Deeside Road. 
  
The existing dwelling ‘Brookfield’ is a one and a half storey modern detached 
dwellinghouse facing south with a garage extension on the north (rear) elevation.  
A block driveway leads down into the site, from the gated entrance.  The existing 
dwelling lies to the north of the site, within relatively open yet in some places 
landscaped gardens, towards North Deeside Road.   
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 27



In respect of topography, the site slopes down from Murtle Den Road from west 
to east, while also falling from north to south.   
 
The boundaries of the site are defined by a number of coniferous and deciduous 
trees, with a total of 10 groupings identified, in addition to 14 individual 
specimens. They can be summarised as follows: 

- G1 – G5: Dense Hedges along the southern and eastern boundary 
comprising Lawson Cypress, estimated at around 30 to 40 years old.  
Height of up to 20 metres.  Some interspersed species including 
sycamore, Norway maple, holly and rhododendron; 

- G2: Group comprises 17 mature mixed broadleaves (including sycamore, 
Norway maple, small leafed lime, and horse chestnut) up to 24 metres in 
height.  Located to the western boundary at Murtle Den Road; 

- G7: This group overhangs the northern boundary of the site to ‘Birkdale’ 
and includes a row of 45 Douglas Fir of approximately 50 to 60 years old; 

- G9: Overhang the stream to the south west, and comprise Sitka Spruce 
and Larch, together with some younger Leyland Cypress.  Up to a height 
of 24 metres. 

 
It should be noted that the Arboricultural report indicated the majority of the trees 
as Category C, with a limited value, and perceived lifespan. 
 
A small water course runs along the south western boundary of the site. 
 
To the west of the site across Murtle Den Road, which is itself tree lined, are 
open fields associated with Oldfold Farm. To the north beyond Brookfield, is the 
house known as ‘Birkdale’.  To the south, beyond the existing line of trees, are 
open fields which are also in the ownership of the applicant.  To the east are 
open fields. 
 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
P141858 – Identical proposal to the current submission, with the demolition of the 
existing dwelling, and erection of three dwellings.  That application was refused 
at Planning Committee on 23 April 2014 for the reason that the proposal was 
contrary to Green Belt Policy (NE2) and could erode the character or function of 
the Green Space Network covered under Policy NE1. 
 
Nearby: 
P131419 – Erection of New Three Storey Dwellinghouse (Feu Split) at 
‘Pinelands’, Murtle Den Road – Initially refused under Delegated Powers on 7 
February 2014.  Subsequent appeal to the Local Review Body was sustained on 
4 July 2014. 
 
 

Page 28



PROPOSAL 
 
Planning permission in principle is sought to demolish the existing property 
‘Brookfield’ and erect three detached dwellinghouses on the site.  The feu split 
would see three curtilages of similar size (The indicative layout illustrates broad 
curtilages of 4000 sq.m for one plot, with the remaining two plots being in the 
region of 3000 sq.m), within this broadly triangular site. 
 
At this time, with the application being for planning permission in principle, the 
submitted plans are only indicative.  As such, there are no details of the dwelling 
design (or scale), nor any external finishing materials. The Design Statement 
does however state that the dwellings would be west facing to provide an active 
frontage to Murtle Den Road 
 
The dwellinghouses would share the existing driveway accessed off Murtle Den 
Road. Minimal tree removal of some recently planted species would be required 
to allow development.  Tree management is recommended by the applicant’s 
arboriculturalist, with some additional/replacement planting in its place.   
 
The applicant acknowledges that SEPA do not allow for private drainage systems 
in areas covered by a public sewer.  As such, the proposed development is 
indicated as being connected to new public sewers which shall run down Murtle 
Den Road, and connect into the existing main sewer.  Surface water drainage 
would be dealt with via SUDS, with some infiltration, and some discharge to the 
local watercourse.   
 
Supporting Documents 
 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at -    
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref.=151376 

On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 

- Bat Survey Report 
- Protected Species Scoping Report 
- Tree Survey Report 
- Supporting Planning Justification 
- Design Statement 
- Drainage Assessment 

 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Roads Development Management – No objection.  Would support this 
development subject to conditions relating to: the provision of adequate car 
parking spaces for each property; the provision of a visibility splay onto Murtle 

Page 29



Den Road; the upgrade of Murtle Den Road to an adoptable standard between 
North Deeside Road and the site access; and, the first 5m of the site access 
being surfaced. 
Environmental Health – No observations. 
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure (Flooding) – No observations. 
Waste/Recycling – No objection.  Indicate the requirements for waste bins and 
recycling provision/kerbside arrangements. 
Community Council – No comments received. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
One letter of objection has been received. The objections raised relate to the 
following matters: 

- The site lies within the Green Belt and there is a presumption against 
development with only limited exceptions which the development does not 
fall within; 

- The proposal is out of keeping with the character of Murtle Den Road; 
- The proposal is not capable of implementation; and 
- The proposed development will challenge the capacity of Murtle Den 

Road. 
 
 
In addition, two letters of support were also received in respect of these 
proposals.  They raised the following aspects; 

- The precedent for development has already been set on Murtle Den Road 
for the erection of 9 new houses, a new feu split, and the erection of a 
further two dwellings. 

- The development of 2 additional houses can only be beneficial to the area; 
- Any land within the boundary of the AWPR/Bypass should have the 

opportunity to be developed; 
- The proposals won’t been seen from North Deeside Road; 
- Development has already started on Oldfold Farm. 

 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
 
Policy NE1 – Green Space Network: states that the Council will protect, promote 
and enhance the wildlife, recreational, landscape and access value of the Green 
Space Network.  Proposals for development that are likely to destroy or erode the 
character or function of the Green Space network will not be permitted. 
 
Policy NE2 – Green Belt: no development will be permitted in the green belt for 
purposes other than those essential for agriculture, woodland and forestry, 
recreational uses compatible with an agricultural or natural setting, mineral 
extraction or restoration or landscape renewal. 

Page 30



 
Policy D1 (Architecture and Placemaking) – To ensure high standards of design, 
new development must be designed with due consideration for its context and 
make a positive contribution to its setting. Factors such as siting, scale, massing, 
colour, materials, orientation, details, the proportions of building elements, 
together with the spaces around buildings, including streets, squares, open 
space, landscaping and boundary treatments, will be considered in assessing 
that contribution. 
 
Policy D2 (Design and Amenity) – Privacy shall be designed into higher density 
housing, residential development will have a public face to the street and private 
face to an enclosed garden or court, residents shall have access to sitting out 
areas, car parking should not dominate, opportunities should be made of views 
and sunlight, measures should be included to design out crime and external 
lighting shall take into account amenity and the effects of light spillage. 
 
Policy NE5 (Trees and Woodland) – There is a presumption against all activities 
and development that will result in the loss of, or damage to, established trees 
and woodlands that contribute significantly to nature conservation, landscape 
character or local amenity, including ancient and semi-natural woodland which is 
irreplaceable. 
 
Policy NE6 (Flooding and Drainage) – Surface water drainage associated with 
development must be the most appropriate available in terms of SUDS and avoid 
flooding and pollution both during and after construction.  
 
In areas not served by the public sewer, a private sewer treatment system for 
individual properties will be permitted provided that the developer demonstrates 
that there will be no adverse effects on the environment, amenity and public 
health. 
 
Policy NE8 (Natural Heritage) – Development that, taking into account any 
proposed mitigation measures, has an adverse effect on a protected species or 
an area designated because of its natural heritage value will only be permitted 
where it satisfies the relevant criteria in Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
 
Policy D1 – Quality Placemaking by Design 
Policy D2 – Landscape 
Policy I1 – Infrastructure Delivery and Planning Obligations 
Policy T2 – Managing the Transport Impact of Development 
Policy T3 – Sustainable and Active Travel 
Policy NE1 – Green Space Network 
Policy NE2 – Green Belt 

Page 31



Policy NE5 – Trees and Woodlands 
Policy NE6 – Flooding, Drainage and Water Quality 
Policy NE8 – Natural Heritage 
Policy R7 – Low and Zero Carbon Buildings, and Water Efficiency 
 
Supplementary Guidance 
 
Subdivision and Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages 
 
Adjacent Site: 
Oldfold Development Framework and Masterplan 
 
The agricultural land predominately to the west is identified in the Local 
Development Plan as Opportunity Site 62 (OP62) and is known as ‘Oldfold’ and 
extends to 48.9 hectares. Oldfold is allocated for the development of                                
550 residential units and 5 hectares of employment land in the period between 
2007 and 2026. 
 
EVALUATION 
 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Principle of Residential Development 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) is clear in identifying that the aim of green belt is 
to direct planned growth to the most appropriate location, and to protect and 
enhance the quality, character and setting of towns and cities.  In this instance, 
while replacing an existing dwelling, and providing an additional two properties, 
the site is located within the wider Green Belt.  As such, the allowance of 
additional residential development in this location may have a detrimental impact 
on the character of the landscape setting of this part of the green belt, which 
would be contrary to the advice within paragrpah 163 of SPP which states: “the 
cumulative erosion of a green belt’s integrity through the granting of individual 
planning permissions should be avoided”.    
 
On a related consideration are the principles of policies NE2 - Green Belt and 
NE1 - Green Space Network.  The wider aim of the green belt has already been 
addressed, although the Local Development Plan does provide specific criteria 
for acceptable development in the Green Belt.  In this instance, the proposal 
does not meet any of the defined criteria for acceptable development in such an 
area, contrary to the claims of the applicant’s agent, and is therefore deemed to 
be contrary to Policy NE2.  In respect of the Green Space Network (GSN), as the 

Page 32



proposal would seek to develop existing garden ground which is synonymous 
with the character of housing along Murtle Den Road, it is considered that there 
is potential for further development to erode or destroy the character or function 
of the GSN in this location and would therefore be contrary to the aims of policy 
NE1. 
 
Changing Character of the Area 
 
It is not considered that there have been any change in circumstances following 
the previous refusal of April 2015 (Ref: P141858) which was for an identifical 
proposal.  The applicant’s agent outlines that they consider that the site no longer 
warrants a green belt designation given the commencement of the a major 
residential development at Oldfold, immediately adjacent to the application site.  
However, the commencement of a site allocated for development through the 
extant and proposed Local Development Plans, is not considered to have a 
bearing on this site, which remains within the Green Belt.  The Proposed Local 
Development Plan was recently considered by the Communities, Housing and 
Infrastructure Committee on 27 October 2015, where it was agreed as the settled 
view of the Council for submission to the Examination by Scottish Ministers.  As 
such, as the Planning System is plan led, it is not considered that sufficient 
justification has been provided in this instance to warrant a departure from the 
Development Plan. 
 
Through the allocation of the Oldfold Masterplan site (which acts as an extension 
to Milltimber), the provision of 550 homes on land to the western edge of Murtle 
Den Road, shall undoubtedly have an effect on the wider character of the area.  
However, it should be noted that the Opportunity Site shall almost in its entireity 
be accessed from either a new road, or existing roads to the west.  Accordingly, 
only a further 12 dwellings (with 9 as part of the Masterplan area, 2 separate 
permissions, and 1 additional dwelling obtained through the Local Review Body) 
are to be accessed to the north off Murtle Den Road.  In light of the general 
topography, and the large presence of trees and woodland, the Oldfold 
Development would not necessarily be seen in the same context as the Murtle 
Den valley itself, and would therefore not justify the provision of further 
development in the Green Belt, as proposed by this application.  Accordingly, the 
provision of development at Oldfold represents planned growth of an existing 
urban area, and would not act as a precedent for development of this nature.  It 
must also be noted that the Oldfold development meets the housing needs for 
Lower Deeside, with no further sites identified for the release of housing land in 
this area.  Therefore there is no need for a further release of development land, 
especially so close to the existing allocation, or within a Green Belt location. 
 
Layout, Access and Design 
 
The character of Murtle Den, which comprises large homes in sizeable grounds 
within a high quality woodland setting, is acknowledged.  However as noted 

Page 33



above, the general principle of development on the site cannot be established 
against Scottish Planning Policy nor the Local Development Plan Policy as it 
relates to Green Belt locations.  The general character of the area would not be 
reflected through the scale and density of development proposed.  The general 
size of individual curtilages does vary along Murtle Den Road, with the likes of 
Brookfield being in the region of 1 ha, and Birkdale at 0.8 ha.  The development 
proposal would introduce three plots varying around 0.3 ha to 0.4ha, and while it 
is comparable to the likes of ‘Tree Tops’ at 0.32 ha, it is not synonymous with the 
predominant scale and character of dwelling curtilages.    
 
While the principle has not been established, there is some merit in outlining the 
difficulty in complying with the more detailed aspects of Council policy relating to 
design and amenity.  Policy D2 is clear in outlining that residential development 
shall have a public face to a street, and a private face to an enclosed garden or 
court.  In this instance, the layout which is indicative, indicates that one dwelling 
would front (westwards) towards Murtle Den Road, with the remaining two 
dwelling effectively being ‘backland’ development beyond to the east.  In addition, 
none of the dwellings are currently indicated as maximising views to the south, or 
to be orientated to maximise from passive solar gain.  This would result in these 
aspects of the proposal being contrary to Policy D2 of the Adopted Local 
Development Plan.  However, as the proposed layout is indicative, it would not in 
itself be a reason for refusal given that the principle of the dwellings has not been 
established. 
 
In addition, it is also considered that the proposals are contrary to the 
Supplementary Guidance (SG) relating to the Sub-division and Redevelopment 
of Residential Curtilages.  It states within paragraph 3.6 that in respect of amenity 
space “Residential development should have a public face to the street, and a 
private face to an enclosed garden or court”.  This also reflects policy D2 
considered above.  In this instance, the proposal would see one property 
orientated towards Murtle Den Road, within a further two properties in a backland 
position with no street frontage.  As such, the proposal fails to meet with the 
necessary criteria.  Furthermore, within Section 5.0 issues relating to the density, 
pattern and scale of development are also raised.  The general pattern of 
development along Murtle Den Road is for large detached properties within 
generous feus.  While there are a few exceptions in terms of feu size, the 
provision of tandem or backland development has not been established, nor 
would it be recommended positively.  As such, the proposal, while indicative, 
would also be contrary to the SG in this regard, as it could create a second 
building line which would fundamentally erode the character and residential 
amenity of such areas. 
 
Drainage 
 
In terms of foul drainage, the closest Scottish Water sewer is located at the 
junction of Murtle Den Road with North Deeside Road, some 250m to the south 

Page 34



of the site access. Advice from SEPA states that within sewered areas, there is a 
principle against the use of private foul drainage systems.  As such, unless 
unviable, a connection should be made to the public system.   However, if the 
principle of planning permission had been established, it is recommended that 
the use of a planning condition requiring a connection to the public system, once 
it is provided down Murtle Den Road, as a part of the associated Oldfold 
proposal.  Surface water drainage could ultimately be adequately addressed 
through a suspensive planning condition.   
 
Transport 
 
The traffic generated by the three proposed dwellinghouses would be relatively 
minor.  However, Roads Officers have indicated that in addition to the provision 
of the necessary visibility splays and surfacing requirements, the applicant would 
also have to upgrade the initial stretch of Murtle Den Road to an adoptable 
standard, from North Deeside Road to the site entrance.  If the principle of the 
development had been established, this would be dealt with by means of a 
suspensive condition which would have prevented development prior to such 
works being undertaken.  However, it appears from one of the submitted 
representations that the applicant may not have the necessary legal right to 
undertake such works.  That, however, is not a material consideration in the 
determination of this planning application.  Ample parking can be provided within 
the proposed plots for the size of the properties and the proposed means of 
access to each site is acceptable.  Accordingly, no concerns have been raised by 
the Council’s roads service in this regard.   
 
Notwithstanding, the requirements of the Roads Officer could however, have a 
distinct impact upon the character of the area.  Murtle Den Road is recognisable 
by its tree lined, narrow form with passing places.  The requirement to widen the 
initial section of the road could result in a more suburban appearance as 
opposed to the existing quaint rural character.  Furthermore, it could also require 
the felling of a number of existing trees alongside the road, which would also 
detract from the existing character of the immediate area. 
 
Wildlife, Habitat and Protected Species 
 
In light of the proposal including the demolition of the existing dwellinghouse, and 
the general landform and environment being a suitable habitat for foraging bats, it 
was requested that a Protected Species Survey be undertaken.  This included a 
Scoping Report for all protected species, and a specific Bat Inspection Survey. 
 
The latter survey indicated that the presence of the following evidence was 
recorded: potential bat droppings.  However, the licenced bat surveyor did 
highlight that the emergence surveys (sunrise and sunset) indicated no signs of 
bats, was undertaken at a time outwith the main active season for bats in the UK.  
As such, it concludes that there was no evidence of bats roosting in this building 

Page 35



and recommends that a further summer survey including bat emergence and re-
entry surveys would be necessary.  Policy NE8 of the Adopted Local 
Development Plan makes it clear that proposals which may have an impact upon 
protected species, should ensure that there can be appropriate mitigation in 
place in line with the requirements of Scottish Planning Policy.  In this instance, 
the Bat Survey has indicated that the presence of bats is unlikely, and the 
applicant is therefore considered to have demonstrated that no harm would arise 
to a protected species through these proposals.   
 
In addition, the Protected Species Scoping Report did highlight the potential for 
breeding birds on site.  However, in light of the development being for planning 
permission in principle, and the potential to implement the development without 
disturbing or resulting in the loss of the existing trees, breeding birds are not of a 
particular concern at this time, as with the previous planning application. 
 
The submitted Tree Survey also noted that some of the younger planting on sites 
did have significant grazing damage from rabbits and roe deer.  However, as 
noted above the principle of development cannot be accepted at this time.  
Notwithstanding, the development in theory could proceed without damaging the 
wildlife habitat for roe deer, whom are transient in the area. 
 
In respect of trees, while there are a substantial number of trees particularly to 
the site boundaries, development could in theory take place with minimal impact 
on the existing trees, apart from the removal of some more recent planting 
additions within the garden ground, and the provision of a visibility splay on 
Murtle Den Road.  However, the principle of the development has not been 
established due to the over-riding conflicts with Green Belt policy. 
 
Letters of representation 
 
The following matters were raised within the letters of representation, which have 
not already been addressed above: 
 

• The proposal development will challenge the capacity of Murtle Den 
Road - No objection has been raised by Roads Officers.  As such, the 
technical requirements would have to be met should planning permission 
ever be approved for the site.  However as noted above, the principle of 
the development has not been established.   

 

• No Negative Visual Impact – while the application site is relatively 
secluded by the presence of substantial treed boundary features, it does 
not in itself outweigh the over-riding policy context.  As noted above, the 
purpose of the Green Belt is to protect the landscape setting of the City, 
and prevent coalesence of built up areas.  As such, the allowance of such 
a development could cumulatively lead to the erosion of the Green Belt, 

Page 36



which is not in accordance with Scottish Planning Policy or Policy NE2 of 
the Adopted Local Development Plan. 

 
Summary 
 
In summary, the proposal to demolish the existing residential dweliing and to 
provide three dwellinghouses remains to be considered contrary to the principles 
of Green Belt policy, in that the proposal would result in the loss of character, or 
landscape setting of the area, and could lead to a precedent for similar 
development proposals which cumulatively would be to the detriment of the wider 
Green Belt of Aberdeen City.  There are not considered to be any change in 
circumstances in comparison to the identical application which was refused in 
April 2015, which would warrant the approval of this application. 
 
Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
 
The Proposed ALDP was approved for submission for Examination by Scottish 
Ministers at the meeting of the Communities, Housing and Infrastructure 
Committee of 27 October 2015. It constitutes the Council’s settled view as to 
what should be the content of the final adopted ALDP and is now a material 
consideration in the determination of planning applications, along with the 
adopted ALDP. The exact weight to be given to matters contained in the 
Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to specific applications 
will depend on whether:  

- these matters have been subject to  representation and are regarded as 
unresolved issues to be determined at the Examination; and 

- the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.  
Policies and proposals which have not been subject to objection will not be 
considered at Examination. In such instances, they are likely to be carried 
forward for adoption. Such cases can be regarded as having greater material 
weight than those issues subject to Examination. The foregoing can only be 
assessed on a case by case basis.  In relation to this particular application the 
policies of the Proposed LDP largely reflect those contained within the extant 
LDP, and therefore there are no material considerations which would outweigh 
those existing policies. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Refuse 
 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
(1) That the site lies within the Green Belt which is defined to protect and 
enhance the landscape setting and identity of urban areas and in which there is a 

Page 37



presumption against most kinds of development with only limited exceptions. The 
proposed development does not comply with any of the specified exceptions to 
the presumption against development within the Green Belt and therefore does 
not comply with Policy NE2, and could erode the character or function of the 
Green Space Network thus conflicting with Policy NE1 of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan 2012. If permitted, this application would create a precedent 
for more, similar developments to the further detriment of the objectives of the 
Green Belt policy. If approved, the necessary road improvements could also 
result in a significant impact on the character of the area, through the provision of 
a widened access road, with the potential loss of a number of trees. Furthermore, 
the proposal is also considered to be contrary to the Supplementary Guidelines 
relating to the Sub-division and Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages, in that 
it would result in the creation of a secondary building line in a backland location 
which would erode the character and residential amenity of the area.   
 

 

 

 

 

Page 38



 
 

 

     

APPLICATION REF NO P151376 

 
 

 

 
PLANNING & SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure  

Business Hub 4, Marischal College, Broad Street, 
ABERDEEN. AB10 1AB 

 

 

Pete Leonard 
Corporate Director 

 
 

 

  
 

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 
 

Refusal of Planning Permission in Principle 
 
Knight Frank LLP 
 

4 Albert Street  

Aberdeen  

Aberdeen City 

AB25 1XQ 
 
on behalf of Mr Richard McDonald  
 
With reference to your application validly received on 31 August 2015 for Planning Permission in 
Principle under the above mentioned Act for the following development, viz:- 
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DWELLINGHOUSE AND ERECTION OF 3 NO.DWELLINGHOUSES    
at Brookfield, Land at, Murtle Den Road, Milltimber  
 
the Council in exercise of their powers under the above mentioned Act hereby REFUSE Planning 
Permission in Principle for the said development specified in the application form and the plan(s) and 
documents docketed as relative thereto and numbered as follows:- 
 
Location Plan and Site Plan 320988/01 
The reasons on which the Council has based this decision are as follows:- 
 
(1) That the site lies within the Green Belt which is defined to protect and enhance the landscape 
setting and identity of urban areas and in which there is a presumption against most kinds of 
development with only limited exceptions. The proposed development does not comply with any of 
the specified exceptions to the presumption against development within the Green Belt and therefore 
does not comply with Policy NE2, and could erode the character or function of the Green Space 
Network thus conflicting with Policy NE1 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012. If permitted, 
this application would create a precedent for more, similar developments to the further detriment of 
the objectives of the Green Belt policy. If approved, the necessary road improvements could also 
result in a significant impact on the character of the area, through the provision of a widened access 
road, with the potential loss of a number of trees. Furthermore, the proposal is also considered to be 
contrary to the Supplementary Guidelines relating to the Sub-division and Redevelopment of 
Residential Curtilages, in that it would result in the creation of a secondary building line in a backland 
location which would erode the character and residential amenity of the area. 
 
The plans, drawings and documents that are the subject of this decision notice are numbered as 
follows:-  Location Plan and Site Plan 320988/01 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



 
     APPLICATION REF NO P151376  

 

Continuation 

 

 

Pete Leonard 
Corporate Director 

 
 

 

 
Date of Signing 8 January 2016 
 

 

 
 

 

Daniel Lewis 
Development Management Manager 

Page 40



 
     APPLICATION REF NO P151376  

 

Continuation 

 

 

Pete Leonard 
Corporate Director 

 
 

 

NB. EXTREMELY IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATED TO THIS GRANT OF PLANNING 
PERMISSION IN PRINCIPLE 

 

1. The applicant has the right to have the decision to refuse the application reviewed by the 

planning authority and further details are given in Form 2 attached below.   

2.  

 Regulation 28(4)(a) 

 
Form 1 

 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 

 
Notification to be sent to applicant on refusal of planning permission or on the 
grant of permission subject to conditions 
 

 

3. If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority to –  

 
a. refuse planning permission for the proposed development; 

 
b. to refuse approval, consent or agreement required by condition 

imposed on a grant of planning permission; 

 
c. to grant planning permission or approval, consent or agreement 

subject to conditions, 

 
the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under 
section 43A(8) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within 
three months from the date of this notice. Any requests for a review must be 
made on a ‘Notice of Review’ form available from the planning authority or at 
http://eplanning.scotland.gov.uk/. 
 
Notices of review submitted by post should be sent to – 
 
Planning and Sustainable Development 
Communities, Housing & Infrastructure 
Aberdeen City Council 
Business Hub 4 
Ground Floor North 
Marischal College 
Broad Street 
Aberdeen 
AB10 1AB 

Page 41



 
     APPLICATION REF NO P151376  

 

Continuation 

 

 

Pete Leonard 
Corporate Director 

 
 

 

 
If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the 
owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonably 
beneficial use in it’s existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably 
benefical use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would 
be permitted, the owners of the land may serve on the planning authority a 
purchase notice requiring the purchase of the owner of the land’s interest in the 
land in accordance with Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 
1997. 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Agenda Item 11

Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Procedure Notice
	3 Delegated Report, Plans, Decision Notice and and Letters of Objection
	Decision Notice
	Letter of Rep 1
	Letter of Rep 2

	5 Notice of Review with supporting information submitted by applicant / agent
	Notice of Review Appeal Statement

	9 Delegated Report, Plans, Decision Notice and and Letters of Objection
	Decision Notice
	Letter of Rep 1
	Letter of Rep 2
	Letter of Rep 3
	Comments from Roads
	Comments from waste
	Comments on letter of rep
	Email correspondence

	11 Notice of Review with supporting information submitted by applicant / agent
	Notice of Review statement


